2022 Candidate Petition Handbook



Florida Department of State Division of Elections R. A. Gray Building, Room 316 500 South Bronough Street Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250 850.245.6280

(Rev. 11/2/2021)

Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction	. 1
Chapter 2: Forms	. 2
Chapter 3: Collecting Signatures	. 4
Chapter 4: Verifying Petitions	. 8
Chapter 5: Fees and Undue Burden Oath	15
Chapter 6: Certification to the Division of Elections	17
Appendix A: Table - 2022 Petition Signatures Required for Circuit Court Judge, Sta Attorney and Public Defender	
Appendix B: DS-DE 9 Appointment of Campaign Treasurer and Designation Campaign Depository for Candidates	
Appendix C: DS-DE 19A Affidavit of Undue Burden - Candidate	23
Appendix D: DS-DE 104 Candidate Petition Form	24
Appendix E: Legal References and Rules Cited	25

Chapter 1: Introduction

This handbook explains the process for collecting signatures to qualify as a candidate by petition method. Information herein applies only to candidate petitions. It does not apply to initiative petitions.

The information contained in this publication serves only as a reference guide. To the extent that this handbook covers material beyond that contained in law or rule, the Division of Elections offers such material to candidates merely as guidelines. This publication is not a substitute for the Florida Election Code or applicable constitutional and rule provisions, the text of which controls.

The following statutes and rules should be reviewed in their entirety:

- Section <u>99.095</u>, Florida Statutes
- Section <u>99.09651</u>, Florida Statutes
- Section <u>99.097</u>, Florida Statutes
- Rule <u>1S-2.045</u>, Florida Administrative Code

(See <u>Appendix E</u>)

All applicable forms and publications are publicly available on the Division of Elections' website at: <u>dos.myflorida.com/elections/forms-publications</u>.

Please direct questions to the Bureau of Election Records help desk at **850.245.6280**.

Chapter 2: Forms

What petition form should be used to obtain signatures from registered voters?

All candidates¹, except Presidential candidates, must use **Form** <u>DS-DE 104</u>, **Candidate Petition Form**.

The most current versions of <u>petition forms</u> are available on the Division of Elections' website.

Petitions on previous versions of Form <u>DS-DE 104</u> are <u>not</u> valid.

A separate petition is required for each candidate.

Who is responsible for reproducing the petition form?

Candidates are responsible for reproducing the petition form.

Can the petition form be altered?

Form <u>DS-DE 104</u> must be reproduced as is without any change to text or format with the following limited exceptions:

- Form <u>DS-DE 104</u> may be reduced or enlarged proportionally in size as a whole document. However, the form cannot be less than 3 inches by 5 inches and no larger than 8 1/2 inches by 11 inches.
- Form <u>DS-DE 104</u> may be included within a larger advertisement, provided the form is clearly defined by a solid or broken border.
- Candidates may use color highlights, circles, X's, arrows, or similar markings that draw attention to items on the form, as well as using cross-outs, line-throughs, or similar markings on items on the form that are not applicable to their candidacy.
- Candidates may translate petition forms into a minority language at their own expense. Petition forms may be two-sided with English on one side and a minority language on the other. However, the double-sided petition may be signed by only one person. If both sides of the form are completed, the Supervisor of Elections will check only the English side of the form for signature verification.

¹ Municipal candidates may use a different form if provided for by city charter or ordinance.

Is a disclaimer required on a petition?

No. A petition is not a political advertisement as defined in Section <u>106.011</u>, Florida Statutes. However, if the petition is included as a part of a larger advertisement that is a political advertisement, the <u>political advertisement</u> will need a disclaimer. A missing disclaimer on such an advertisement does not invalidate an otherwise properly executed petition but does constitute a violation of <u>Chapter 106</u>, Florida Statutes.

Chapter 3: Collecting Signatures

How many signatures are needed?

The requisite number of signatures for qualifying by petition method for specified offices in a year of apportionment such as 2022 is different than other years. See s. 99.09651, F.S., for formula for candidates for U.S. House of Representatives, State Senate, and State House of Representatives. Petition signatures for these offices may be obtained from any registered voter in Florida regardless of party affiliation or district boundaries. See s. 99.095(1)(d), F.S., for formula for candidates for county and district offices. The requisite number of signatures for these offices may be obtained rom any regardless of district boundaries.

- United States Senator 144,419 signatures
- Representative in Congress 2,568 signatures
- Governor 144,419 signatures
- Attorney General 144,419 signatures
- Chief Financial Officer 144,419 signatures
- Commissioner of Agriculture 144,419 signatures
- State Senator 1,798
- State Representative 599
- Circuit Court Judge, State Attorney (6th and 20th Circuits) and Public Defender (20th Circuit)

 (see <u>Appendix A</u>)
- Special District Candidate 25 signatures

Note: 2022 is a year of apportionment, which occurs every ten years. In election years other than a year of apportionment, the general requirement is to obtain signatures equal to 1% of the registered voters in the geographical area for the last general election, with the exception of special district candidates.

When can a candidate start collecting signatures on petitions?

A candidate can collect signatures as soon as a completed **Form <u>DS-DE 9</u>**, Appointment of Campaign Treasurer and Designation of Campaign Depository, is filed with the filing officer (*see* <u>Appendix B</u>). Petitions signed prior to the date Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> is filed with the filing officer are <u>not</u> valid.

- <u>Exception</u>: Special district candidates are <u>not</u> required to file Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> if they do not collect contributions or make expenditures other than the filing fee or signature verification fee.
- **Exception:** Federal candidates do **not** file Form <u>DS-DE 9</u>.

How long are signed petitions valid?

Signatures for all candidates are valid only for the next general election qualifying period for that office immediately following the filing of the <u>DS-DE 9</u>.

Example:

Candidate A is a 2024 State Representative candidate. The candidate may not begin collecting signatures until <u>after</u> the 2022 qualifying period.

Example:

Candidate B is a 2022 State Representative candidate. In the year of apportionment, petitions can be collected from any Florida voter regardless of district boundaries. In September 2021, a special election is called for this office with qualifying set in 2021. Candidate B wants to change to the special election. Candidate B may transfer only those petitions signed by voters within the district for the special election.

Example:

Candidate C is a 2022 State Representative candidate. In September of 2021, a special election is called for this office. Candidate C wants to qualify for the special election but does <u>not</u> want to transfer the petitions already signed to the special election. Candidate C may accomplish this by filing a new Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> and opening an entirely separate campaign depository for the special election. Candidate C must start anew with contributions and petition gathering for the special election while maintaining the former campaign account for the general election. Petitions for the special election must be signed by voters within the district only. Candidate C may not use the funds or petitions previously collected for the special election. Candidate C may not use the funds or petitions gathered in the special election for the subsequent general election.

Example:

Candidate D is a 2024 County Commission candidate. The incumbent for that office resigns to run for another office. The office will now appear on the 2022 ballot for a term to end in 2024. Candidate D may choose the following options:

- 1. Remain a candidate for the 2024 County Commission and keep petitions.
- 2. Change elections from 2024 to 2022 and transfer petitions to the 2022 election.
- 3. Both Remain a 2024 candidate and retain petitions. File a separate DS-DE 9 and separate campaign account for the 2022 candidate. (See page 4 regarding petitions during the year of apportionment.)

Where can candidates collect signatures on petitions?

The Election Code does not govern where signatures can be collected. The candidate should check with the property owner.

Can a candidate pay someone to collect petitions?

Yes. Nothing in the Election Code prohibits a candidate from paying any person to collect petitions. See <u>Chapter 5: Fees and Undue Burden Oath</u> for information on what happens when an undue burden oath is filed.

May a voter revoke their signature on a petition after receipt of the petition by the Supervisor of Elections?

No authority exists for a voter who has signed a petition to revoke their signature after it has been received by the Supervisor of Elections. (See Rule <u>1S-2.045(4)(d)</u>, Florida Administrative Code.)

Chapter 4: Verifying Petitions

Where are petitions submitted?

Signed petition forms are submitted for verification to the Supervisor of Elections in the <u>county in which the voter is registered</u>.

It is the responsibility of the candidate to ensure that the signed petition form is properly filed with the Supervisor of Elections of the county in which the signer is a registered voter. In the case of a misfiled petition, the filing date of the petition is the date such petition is filed with the proper county. If the Supervisor of Elections determines that the signer of a petition is not registered in their county, the supervisor shall notify the candidate that the petition has been misfiled, and shall return the petition to the candidate so that it can be refiled.

When is the deadline for submitting petitions to the Supervisor of Elections?

No later than noon on:

- March 28, 2022 Circuit Court Judge, State Attorney (6th and 20th Judicial Circuits), and Public Defender (20th Judicial Circuit)
- <u>May 16, 2022</u> U.S. Senator, Representative in Congress, Governor, Attorney General, Chief Financial Officer, Commissioner of Agriculture, State Senate, State Representative, County, School Board, and Special District

Is this petition valid?

... if the petition is signed and dated before the filing date of Form <u>DS-DE 9</u>?

A petition signed and dated before the filing date of Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> is invalid (except for federal candidates and special district candidates who have not collected contributions and whose only expense is the signature verification fee or filing fee). Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> is not valid until filed (received) by the qualifying officer.

... if the petition is missing a required group, seat or district designation?

In the year of apportionment, any candidate for *county or district* office seeking ballot position by the petition process <u>may obtain the required number of signatures from any</u> <u>registered voter in the respective county, regardless of district boundaries.</u> (Section

99.095(2)(d), Florida Statutes) - Incorrect or lack of district designation on the petition will not invalidate the petition during year of apportionment. (*Exception – Judicial Candidate petition requirements do not change.*)

Note: Petitions collected for elections outside of the year of apportionment for an office that requires a group, seat or district designation, <u>must</u> contain the designation or it is invalid.

... if a candidate changes the office that they are running for?

In the year of apportionment, incorrect or lack of district designation on the petition will not invalidate the petition for any candidate for *county or district* office seeking ballot position by the petition process. (*Exception – Judicial Candidate petition requirements do not change.*)

Note: For petitions collected for elections outside of the year of apportionment, if a candidate changes the office that they are running for, any previously submitted petitions are not valid for the new office. This includes changing seats, groups, or districts.

Example:

Changing from County Commissioner, Seat 1 to County Commissioner, Seat 5 in the year of apportionment <u>will not invalidate</u> all previously verified petitions.

Example:

Changing from Circuit Court Judge, 17th Judicial Circuit, Group 1, to 17th Judicial Circuit, Group 5, <u>will invalidate</u> all previously verified petitions.

... if a candidate changes election years?

If a candidate changes from the 2022 election to the 2024 election, the petitions verified for the 2022 qualifying period will <u>not</u> be valid for the 2024 election.

... if a candidate changes to an intervening special election?

If a candidate changes from a regularly scheduled election to an earlier, intervening special election being held for that office, the petitions verified for the regular election that are from voters *within the county or district* <u>are</u> valid for the special election.

... if a candidate elects not to participate in an intervening special election?

If there is an earlier, intervening special election and the candidate decides not to participate in the special election, any petitions verified prior to the special election will remain valid for the regularly scheduled election.

... if a candidate's party affiliation on the petition is not the same as the party affiliation listed on the candidate's Form <u>DS-DE 9</u>?

The party affiliation listed on the petition must match the party affiliation listed on Form <u>DS-DE 9</u>, or if NPA is listed on the petition, the <u>DS-DE 9</u> must indicate NPA. If they do not match, the petition is invalid.

ATTENTION: Recent law (s. 11 of <u>Chapter 2021-11</u>, <u>Laws of Florida</u>) requires a person seeking nomination as a candidate of a political party to be a member of that political party for the 365 days BEFORE the beginning of the applicable qualifying period. Additionally, the law requires a person seeking to qualify for office as a candidate with no party affiliation to not be a member of any political party for the 365 days BEFORE the beginning of the applicable qualifying beriod.

The candidate's party affiliation as indicated in their registration records is irrelevant and has no bearing on the validity of the petitions. The candidate's voter registration party affiliation does not become an issue until such time as they file qualifying documents during the qualifying period.

Example 1 – Invalid Petition:

Candidate A files Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> indicating that they are running as a Republican candidate. Their petition forms also indicate that they are running as a Republican candidate. After submitting a number of petitions for verification, Candidate A submits a new <u>DS-DE 9</u> indicating that they are running as a Democratic candidate. All previously verified petitions will not be eligible for qualifying as a Democratic candidate.

Example 2 – Valid Petition:

Candidate B files Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> indicating that they are running as a Republican candidate. Their petition forms also indicate that they are running as a Republican candidate. Candidate B's voter registration party affiliation is Democrat. After submitting a number of petitions for verification, Candidate B changes their voter registration party affiliation to Republican. All petitions verified prior to Candidate B's change in voter registration remain valid. (See Party Affiliation on page 10 – Attention: Recent Law.)

Example 3 – Valid Petition:

Candidate C circulates petitions as an NPA candidate and is registered as a voter with party affiliation. As long as Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> indicates that the candidate is running with no party affiliation, the petitions are valid. (See Party Affiliation on page 10 – Attention: Recent Law.)

Example 4 – Invalid Petition:

Candidate D files Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> indicating that they are running as a Republican candidate. After they have begun collecting signatures, the candidate files a new <u>DS-DE 9</u> changing from a Republican candidate to an NPA candidate. The petitions indicating that the candidate is a Republican candidate are no longer valid and do not count towards the total amount needed to qualify as a petition candidate. (See Party Affiliation on page 10 – Attention: Recent Law.)

Example 5 – Valid Petition:

Candidate E circulates petitions for a nonpartisan office but is registered as a voter with party affiliation. As long as the petition indicates that the candidate is running for a nonpartisan office, the petitions are valid.

Example 6 – Valid Petition:

Candidate F changes party affiliation on their voter registration record while running for a nonpartisan office. If the candidate is running for a nonpartisan office, changing their voter registration party affiliation will have no effect on previously verified petitions.

... if a candidate puts their party affiliation on a petition for a nonpartisan office?

A candidate for a nonpartisan office must check the block that indicates "Nonpartisan" on the petition when collecting petitions for a nonpartisan office. While the candidate may be a member of a party and still run in a nonpartisan race, they must collect petitions as a nonpartisan candidate and indicate this on the petition. If a nonpartisan candidate indicates that they are running as a party affiliated candidate, it will invalidate the petitions.

Note: If the petition indicates conflicting or incorrect information regarding the candidate's status as a nonpartisan, no party affiliated, or party affiliated candidate, the petition is invalid.

... if the petition is signed by a voter who is not registered in the geographical area represented at the time of signing or verification?

In the year of apportionment, any candidate for *county or district* office seeking ballot position by the petition process may obtain the required number of signatures from <u>any</u> <u>registered voter in the respective county, regardless of district boundaries.</u> (Section 99.095(2)(d), Florida Statutes) - Incorrect or lack of district designation on the petition will not invalidate the petition during year of apportionment. *(Exception – Judicial Candidate petition requirements do not change.)*

If a petition is signed by a voter who is not registered in the geographical area represented, it is not valid for that county. Form <u>DS-DE 104</u> requires the person to attest that they <u>are</u> a registered voter in said "county and state" at the time a person signs the petition. Thus, at the time of signing, the person must have been a registered voter in the county. Additionally, Rule <u>1S-2.045</u>, Florida Administrative Code, states a petition is invalid if the "petition is signed by a voter who is not a registered voter in the county, district, or other geographical area represented by the office sought unless otherwise specified in Sections <u>99.095</u> and <u>99.09651</u>, Florida Statutes, <u>at both the time of signing and verification of the petition</u>."

... if the voter signs more than one petition for the same candidate?

Only one candidate petition per voter per candidate may be verified as valid.

When a supervisor is confronted with a situation where the same voter signs two or more candidate petitions for the same candidate for the same office, only one petition may be validated. For example, if the first petition submitted by the voter is valid, it remains valid even if a second petition by the same voter is submitted contrary to the above statute; however, the second petition may not be validated. The supervisor must ensure that only one petition per voter per candidate is counted as valid. Under Section <u>104.185</u>, Florida Statutes, a person who <u>knowingly</u> signs a candidate petition more than one time for a

candidate commits a misdemeanor of the first degree. If the supervisor believes the voter or candidate violated the above statute by the submission of more than one petition per voter per candidate, the supervisor may file an elections fraud complaint with the Division of Elections or refer the matter to the local state attorney.

<u>A voter may sign petitions for different candidates</u> in the same race. There is nothing in the Election Code that prohibits a voter from signing petitions for more than one candidate in the same race or election.

... if the petition form is signed by an inactive voter?

A petition signed by an inactive voter is valid as long as it meets all other requirements. A voter's active or inactive status is immaterial.

... if the petition form is incomplete?

See Rule <u>1S-2.045(5)(f)</u>, Florida Administrative Code, for details on what information <u>must</u> be on the petition.

... if the petition is prefilled by the candidate?

The only entries that must be filled in by the voter are the signature and the date. Therefore, a candidate or petition gatherer is allowed to prefill all other information.

... if the petition is dated after the date the candidate submits the petition to the supervisor?

Rule <u>1S-2.045(5)(f)</u>, Florida Administrative Code, requires that the petition form contain "the date the voter signed the petition as recorded by the voter." If the date has not occurred, or occurred after the date the supervisor receives the petition, the voter obviously could not have signed the petition on that date, and it should not be counted as valid.

... if the voter with a public records exemption signs the petition?

No special processes apply when voters with **public records exemptions** sign petition forms. Like any other voter, if the voter with a protected address wants to sign the petition, the voter may elect to place a business address or some other address. If the voter lists an address other than the legal residence where the voter is registered, the supervisor must treat the petition as if the voter had listed the address where the voter is registered.

... if the petition does not have a disclaimer?

A petition does not meet the definition of a political advertisement as defined in Section <u>106.011</u>, Florida Statutes (as it does not expressly advocate the election of a candidate). Thus, on its own, a petition need not contain a disclaimer. However, if the petition is included as a part of a larger advertisement that does meet the definition of a political advertisement, the political advertisement would need a disclaimer. A missing disclaimer on such an advertisement does not invalidate an otherwise properly executed petition but does constitute a violation of <u>Chapter 106</u>, Florida Statutes.

... if the petition does not have the voter's original signature?

Rule <u>1S-2.045(5)(f)4.</u>, Florida Administrative Code, provides that the Supervisor of Elections shall not verify a signature on a petition unless it contains the voter's original signature. Thus, copies of petitions, electronic submission (such as email), or petitions with electronic signatures are not valid.

... if a candidate is not registered to vote in the geographical area represented by the office sought?

Only the voter's registration status affects the validity of the petition. The candidate's eligibility for office has no bearing on the validity of the petitions.

... if the petition contains a shortened version of a political party's name in the block that asks for the name of the political party?

If the supervisor can determine with certainty to which party the shortened version refers, the petition should be verified.

Example:

Form <u>DS-DE 9</u> indicates that the candidate is running as a Republican candidate. The petition has the acronym RPOF in the name of political party block. This would be acceptable as there is only one party commonly known as RPOF, i.e., Republican Party of Florida.

Chapter 5: Fees and Undue Burden Oath

What is the verification fee?

There is a fee of 10 cents per signature or the actual cost of checking such signatures, <u>whichever is less</u>, to be paid to the Supervisor of Elections for the cost of verifying the signature.

The fees must be paid in advance of verifying the petitions.

Who is responsible for the verification fee?

Section <u>99.097(4)</u>, Florida Statutes, provides that the Supervisor of Elections shall be paid in advance <u>by the candidate</u>. Thus, there are three ways to pay for the verification fees.

- The verification fee is paid with a campaign check or the campaign's petty cash.
- The candidate pays the verification fee with personal funds and reports it as an in-kind contribution or is reimbursed by the campaign.
- Someone else pays the verification fees and is reimbursed by the campaign.

Because the statute specifically states that the candidate shall pay the verification fee, ultimately, the candidate is responsible for paying the fee. If someone else pays the verification fee, it is the candidate's responsibility to ensure that the person is reimbursed by the campaign.

What is an undue burden oath?

If a candidate cannot pay the signature verification fee without imposing an undue burden on the candidate's resources, the candidate may file an undue burden oath (see <u>Appendix C</u>). Candidates must file an undue burden oath with each Supervisor of Elections' office where petitions will be submitted. The undue burden oath filed in each county must be properly notarized.

If any person is paid to solicit signatures on a petition, a candidate may <u>not</u> subsequently file an undue burden oath.

If an undue burden oath has been filed and payment is subsequently made to any person to

solicit signatures on a petition, the oath is no longer valid and a fee for all signatures previously submitted to the Supervisor of Elections and any that are submitted thereafter shall be paid by the candidate who submitted the oath.

If a candidate receives monetary contributions, as defined in Section <u>106.011</u>, Florida Statutes, after the candidate has filed an undue burden oath and subsequently paid a signature gatherer, the monetary contributions must first be used to reimburse the Supervisor of Elections for any signature verifications fees that were not paid because of the filing of the oath.

Chapter 6: Certification to the Division of Elections

Which candidate petitions must be certified to the State?

Supervisors of Elections must certify the number of verified petitions for the following offices to the Division of Elections:

- U.S. Senate
- Representative in Congress
- Governor
- Attorney General
- Chief Financial Officer
- Commissioner of Agriculture
- State Senator
- State Representative
- Circuit Court Judge
- State Attorney
- Public Defender
- Multi-county Special District

Who determines whether the candidate's name is placed on the ballot?

After receipt of the certifications from the Supervisor of Elections, the Division of Elections will determine whether the required number of signatures has been obtained in order for the name of the candidate to be placed on the ballot and will notify the candidate and the supervisor. (**NOTE**: This certification only excuses you from paying the qualifying fee and any party assessment when seeking to qualify for this office. The certification does not excuse you from submitting other qualifying papers required by the Florida Election Code.)

How do I confirm the number of signatures certified to the Division of Elections?

To check the number of signatures certified to the Division of Elections, search for the candidate's name on the <u>Candidate Tracking System</u>.

Select an Election and click View List.

	Candidates a	and Races						
	Candidate Tracking System The Florida Department of State's Candidate Tracking System tracks candidates throughout the elections process presenting candidate status, campaign finance activity, personal photos and contact information. This information is updated regularly as candidates update their information.							
	Commission once the may or may not have information placed of	es. Although federal candidates an ey rece e contributions or make e e reached this threshold but have n n the Dission's website prior to qua	e requir xpendit otified t alifying	fficial reference of candidates for federal, state, ed to register with the Federal Election ures in excess of \$5000, federal candidates who he Division that they wish to have their name and for office are listed as a courtesy to the candidate please contact your local <u>Supervisor of</u>				
	General Election:	View List						
	Special Election:	ial Election: 2022 Special: US House 20 View List						
		Go to List Dor	wnload					
Flo	rida Division of Elections	, Room 316, R.A. Gray Building, 500	South B	onough Street, Tallahassee, Fl. 32399-0250, 850.245.6200				

Then click on the candidate's name.

Office:	ALL State Rep	resentative	~	 Status: 	ALL (except WI	T/DNQ)		
	State Rep	resentative	l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l l				/ -	
Last Nar	(~	County:	ALL	-		
Lastinal	ne Like:			Order by	: Name	~		
			State R	epresentativ	'e			
Dis	trict Ca	didate			Sta	atus Pi	rimary	General

Click **Petition Signatures** at the bottom of the screen.

Car	ndidate Tracking System
	2022 General Election State Representative District 1
	Johnny A. Doe Democrat
Address	Campaign Treasurer
CONTRACTORS AND A CONTRACTORS	Welenaare (W. Charleson
WHEEL SHOTLES, P. 19794	THE I PARTY STREET
Phone:	THEOREM (1997)
Phone:	Status:Active
	ate Filed:12/01/2020
-	Qualified:
	Method:Petition method
	Campaign Finance Activity
	Campaign Documents
	Petition Signatures

The Petition Signatures button will **not** appear on a candidate's page if no petitions have been received and processed by the Supervisor of Elections.

The page will display the total required signatures, total verified, and the last date petitions were verified from a county to the Division of Elections.

Ca	ndida	ate's Petiti	ion Signatures			
2022 General Election State Representative District 1						
Johnny A. Doe Democrat						
	uired	Total Verified				
Total Req	uneu					
Total Req 599		800				
			Total Verified Number]		
599	Last	800]		

What do I do if I believe the totals are incorrect?

You will need to contact the Supervisor of Elections for the county in question.

What is the deadline for Supervisor of Elections to certify signatures to the Division of Elections?

No later than 5:00 p.m. on:

- <u>April 18, 2022</u> Circuit Court Judge, State Attorney (6th and 20th Judicial Circuits), and Public Defender (20th Judicial Circuit)
- June 6, 2022 U. S. Senator, Representative in Congress, Governor, Attorney General, Chief Financial Officer, Commissioner of Agriculture, State Senate, State Representative, and Multi-county Special District

Certifications received from the Supervisor of Elections after the deadline will <u>not</u> be accepted.

Appendix A

2022 Petition Signatures Required for Circuit Court Judge, State Attorney (6th and 20th) and Public Defender (20th)

Judicial Circuit	Signatures Required
1	5,868
2	2,949
3	1,198
4	9,012
5	8,990
6	11,049
7	7,512
8	2,755
9	11,055
10	5,507
11	15,643
12	6,314
13	9,344
14	2,028
15	10,203
16	570
17	12,670
18	7,876
19	4,891
20	8,993

Appendix B: DS-DE 9 Appointment of Campaign Treasurer and Designation of Campaign Depository for Candidates

DEPOSIT	GNATIO	AMPAIGN TR DN OF CAMP OR CANDIDA 021(1), F.S.)	PAIGN				
(PLE) NOTE: This form officer before open	must be						OFFICE USE ONLY
1. CHECK APPROP Initial Filing of	RIATE E			reasurer/	Deputy	Depository] Office
2. Name of Candida	a te (in thi	s order: First, M	iddle, Last)	3. Ad code		le post office box or	street, city, state, zip
4. Telephone ()	5	5. E-mail address	s	1			
6. Office sought (in	clude dis	trict, circuit, grou	up number)		7. If a cane applical	ble:	tisan office, check if as a Write-In candidate.
Write-In 9. I have appointed	_	arty Affiliation	o act as my				arty candidate. uty Treasurer
10. Name of Treasu	rer or De	•.					
 Name of Treasu Mailing Address City 	rer or De	•.	15. Sta	ate 16	. Zip Code	12. Tele (17. E-mail address	ephone)
11. Mailing Address		14. County	15. Sta		ary Deposito	12. Tele (17. E-mail address	ephone)
 Mailing Address City I have designat 		14. County	15. Sta] Prima	ary Deposito	12. Tele (17. E-mail address	ephone)
 Mailing Address City I have designat Name of Bank City 	ed the fo	14. County 22. Cou	15. Sta as my	20. Addi	23. State	12. Tele (17. E-mail address ry Second	ephone) s lary Depository 24. Zip Code AMPAIGN TREASURER AND
 Mailing Address City I have designat Name of Bank City 	ed the fo	14. County 22. Cou	15. Sta as my	Prima 20. Addr 20. Addr F FOREGO	23. State	12. Tele (17. E-mail address ry Second R APPOINTMENT OF C STATED IN IT ARE TRU	ephone) s lary Depository 24. Zip Code AMPAIGN TREASURER AND
 Mailing Address City I have designat Name of Bank Name of Bank City UNDER PENALTIES OF Date 	ed the fo	14. County 22. County 1 Declare That	15. Sta as my [unty TI HAVE READ TH AGEN DEPOSITORY	20. Addi 20. Addi E FOREGO (AND THA 26. Sign	ary Deposito ress 23. State ING FORM FO T THE FACTS ature of Car	12. Tele (17. E-mail address ry Second R APPOINTMENT OF C STATED IN IT ARE TRU didate check the appropria	ephone) s lary Depository 24. Zip Code AMPAIGN TREASURER AND E.
 Mailing Address City I have designat Name of Bank Name of Bank City UNDER PENALTIES OF Date 	ed the fo	14. County 22. Cou 1 DECLARE THAT NATION OF CAMPA 2 ACCEPtance of (Please Print of	15. Sta as my [unty TI HAVE READ TH AGEN DEPOSITORY	Prima 20. Addi 20. Addi 20. Sign 26. Sign X t (fill in the	ary Deposito ress 23. State ING FORM FO T THE FACTS ature of Car	12. Tele (17. E-mail address ry Second RAPPOINTMENT OF C STATED IN IT ARE TRU didate check the appropria _ , do hereby acces	ephone) s lary Depository 24. Zip Code AMPAIGN TREASURER AND E. ate block)

Appendix C: DS-DE 19A Affidavit of Undue Burden – Candidate

			UE BURDEN
			lorida Statutes)
	(Section 99.	.097(4), FI	onua Statutes)
ection 99.097(6), Fid urden oath may not an undue burden oa ignatures on a petitio o the supervisor of el nat submitted the un ontributions must <u>firs</u> ot paid because of f ayment is made to a 2) Upon a candidat as surplus funds, mu pplicable). See s. 11	orida Statutes, provides: subsequently be filed in ath has been filed and p on, the undue burden oa lections and any submit ndue burden oath. If o at be used to reimburse t the filing of the undue b a signature gatherer after se terminating the cam just first apply the surplus 06.141(7), Florida Statut	: (a) If any perso lieu of paying the ayment is subset ath is no longer of ted thereafter should be contributions as the supervisor of burden oath. [N r an undue burd paign , any can be stunds to the re- tes.	e or invalidate the filing of an undue burden oath. on is paid to solicit signatures on a petition, an undue he fee to have signatures verified for that petition. (b) equently made to any person to solicit valid and a fee for all signatures previously submitted hall be paid by the candidate, person, or organization defined in s. 106.011 are received, any monetary felections for any signature verification fees that were lote: The second sentence in (b) applies only when len oath had been filed.] didate who qualified by the petition process and who imbursement of the signature verification fee (if
I certify under oath	n that I intend to qualify	/ as a candidat	e for the office of
			and that I am unable to
			ice without imposing an undue burden on my
personal resources	or on resources otherw	ise available to	me.
x			APLE
Signature	of Candidate		Print Candidate's Name
Address		City	
		,	
		()
State	Zip	Tele) ephone Number
State	Zip	Tele) ephone Number
State STATE OF FLORIE		Tele) ephone Number
		Tele) ephone Number
STATE OF FLORID		Tele	Signature of Notary Public
STATE OF FLORID		Tele	
STATE OF FLORIE			Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
STATE OF FLORIE	DA	re me by means	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below:
STATE OF FLORIE COUNTY OF Sworn to (or affirme online notarization	DA 	rre me by means ce □	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below: s of
STATE OF FLORIE COUNTY OF Sworn to (or affirme online notarization this day of	DA ed) and subscribed befo	re me by means ce 20	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below: s of
STATE OF FLORIE COUNTY OF Sworn to (or affirme online notarization this day of Personally Known (DA ed) and subscribed befo OR physical present	re me by means ce □ 20 fication □	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below: s of
STATE OF FLORIE COUNTY OF Sworn to (or affirme online notarization this day of Personally Known (ed) and subscribed befo	re me by means ce □ 20 fication □	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below: s of
STATE OF FLORIE COUNTY OF Sworn to (or affirme online notarization this day of Personally Known (ed) and subscribed befo	re me by means ce □ 20 fication □	Signature of Notary Public Print, Type or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public below: s of

Appendix D: DS-DE 104 Candidate Petition Form

CANDIDATE PETITION Notes: - All information on this form becomes a public record upon receipt by the Supervisor of Elections. - It is a crime to knowingly sign more than one petition for a candidate. [Section 104.185, Florida Statutes] - If all requested information on this form is not completed, the form will not be valid as a Candidate Petition form.
I, the undersigned, a registered voter
(print name as it appears on your voter information card)
in said state and county, petition to have the name of
placed on the Primary/General Election Ballot as a: [check/complete box, as applicable]
Nonpartisan No party affiliation Constrained include district, circuit, group, seat number, if applicable)
City County State Zip Code
Signature of Voter Date Signed (MM/DD/YY) [to be completed by Voter] Rule 15-2.045, F.A.C. DS-DE 104 (Eff. 09/11)

Appendix E: Legal References and Rules Cited

Florida Statutes

- <u>99.095</u> Petition process in lieu of a qualifying fee and party assessment.
- <u>99.09651</u> Signature requirements for ballot position in year of apportionment.
- <u>99.097</u> Verification of signatures on petitions.
- <u>100.371</u> Initiatives; procedure for placement on ballot.
- <u>104.31</u> Political activities of state, county, and municipal officers and employees.
- <u>104.185</u> Petitions; knowingly signing more than once; signing another person's name or a fictitious name.
- <u>106.011</u> Definitions.
- <u>106.15</u> Certain acts prohibited.

Florida Election Code

• Chapters 97 – 106, Florida Statutes

Florida Administrative Code

• <u>Rule 1S-2.045</u> Candidate Petition Process

Forms

- <u>DS-DE 9</u> Appointment of Campaign Treasurer and Designation of Campaign Depository for Candidates
- <u>DS-DE 19A</u> Affidavit of Undue Burden Candidate
- <u>DS-DE 104</u> Candidate Petition Form

Candidate Tracking System – Division of Elections

• <u>dos.elections.myflorida.com/candidates</u>